
  
AGENDA 

 
DES MOINES CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers 

VIA ZOOM 
 

September 16, 2021 – 5:00-8:00 p.m. 

 
NOTE: The City of Des Moines is currently operating under a Proclamation of 
Emergency issued on March 5, 2020 and Governor Inslee’s Stay-at-Home order 
issued March 23, 2020 in response to the COVID-19 Pandemic. Accordingly, this 
meeting will be held virtually using Zoom. 

 
Public Comment continues to be encouraged and will be accepted by completing a 
council comment form or by mail; Attn: City Clerk Office, 21630 11th Avenue S., 
Des Moines WA  98198 no later than 4:00 p.m. day of the meeting.   

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC VIA ZOOM/WRITTEN PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
  Item 1:  PARKS, RECREATION & SENIOR SERVICES MASTER PLAN  
    UPDATE 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Page 3  Item 1:  APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS 

Motion is to approve for payment vouchers and payroll transfers 
through September 7, 2021 in the attached list and further 
described as follows: 
Total A/P Checks/Vouchers #162973-163029 $   728,654.55 
Electronic Wire Transfers #        1490-1798 $   124,419.64 
Payroll Checks  #    19418-19419 $       2,068.12 
Payroll Direct Deposit  #350001-350160 $   392,521.46 
 
Total Checks and Wires for A/P and Payroll:   $1,247,663.77 

 
Page 5 Item 2:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  Motion is to approve the June 17, July 08, and July 22, 2021 City 

Council Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

 
 

1

1

http://desmoineswa.hosted.civiclive.com/cms/one.aspx?portalid=17385088&pageid=17667089


 
Page 19 Item 3: CONFIRMATION OF CITY MANAGER’S RE-APPOINTMENT OF 

LISA LEONE TO THE MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE POSITION 
 Motion is to confirm the City Manager’s re-appointment of Lisa 

Leone to the Municipal Court Judge position effective January 1, 
2022 through December 31, 2025. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
Page 21 Item 1:  SECOND READING OF DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 21-035  

RELATED TO THE ZONING CODE AND REGULATION OF 
EMERGENCY HOUSING, SHELTERS, PERMANENT 
SUPPORTIVE HOUSING AND TRANSITIONAL HOUSING.  

 Staff Presentation:  
Economic Relief & Resource Coordinator/Land Use Planner II 
Eric Lane 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 Item 1:  AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 
   Staff Presentation:   City Manager Michael Matthias 
 
 Item 2:  INTRODUCTION OF ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
   10 Minutes 
 
BOARD & COMMITTEE REPORTS/COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS – (4 minutes per 
Councilmember) - 30 minutes 
 
PRESIDING OFFICER’S REPORT 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
   
NEXT MEETING DATE 
    October 7, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

2

2

Page 39



# From # To Amounts

Total A/P Checks/Vouchers 162973 163029 728,654.55
Electronic Wire Transfer  1790 1798 124,419.64
Total claims paid 853,074.19

Payroll Vouchers
19418 19419 2,068.12

Direct Deposit  350001 350160 392,521.46

Total Paychecks/Direct Deposits paid 394,589.58
Total checks and wires for A/P & Payroll 1,247,663.77

Payroll Checks
9/3/2021

City of Des Moines Auditing Officer:

Beth Anne Wroe, Finance Director

Claims Vouchers:

RCW 42.24.090, have been recorded on a listing, which has been made available to the
City Council.

As of September 16, 2021 the Des Moines City Council, by unanimous vote, does approve
for payment those vouchers through September 7, 2021 and payroll transfers through 
September 3, 2021 included in the attached list and further described as follows:

The vouchers below have been reviewed and certified by individual departments and the 

September 16, 2021
Auditing Officer Certification

Vouchers and Payroll transfers audited and certified by the auditing officer as required by
RCW 42.24.080, and those expense reimbursement claims certified as required by 

Consent Calendar Item #1
3

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

4

4



MINUTES 

DES MOINES CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council Chambers 
VIA ZOOM 

June 17, 2021 – 5:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Pina called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The flag salute was led by Councilmember Harris. 

ROLL CALL 
Council present: Mayor Matt Pina 

Deputy Mayor Matt Mahoney; Councilmembers Luisa Bangs, Traci Buxton, JC 
Harris, Anthony Martinelli, and Jeremy Nutting attended the meeting via Zoom. 

Staff present: Police Chief Ken Thomas; and City Clerk/Communications Director Bonnie Wilkins 

City Manager Michael Matthias; City Attorney Tim George; Chief Strategic Officer 
Susan Cezar; Finance Director Beth Anne Wroe, Harbormaster Scott Wilkins; 
Planning & Development Service Manager Denise Lathrop; Building Official Larry 
Pickard; Assistant Building Official Al Biancalana; Public Works Director Brandon 
Carver; Transportation & Engineering Services Manager Andrew Merges; Surface 
Water & Environment Engineering Manager Loren Reinhold; Assistant Director of 
Parks, Recreation and Senior Services Nicole Nordholm; Emergency Preparedness 
Manager Shannon Kirchberg and Deputy City Clerk Taria Keane attended the 
meeting via Zoom.   

CORRESPONDENCE 
• There were no correspondence

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC via Written Comment 
• Mary Eun, MVD and Woodmont Drive
• Alicia Harck, Marine View Drive South/Woodmont Drive (Crash Corner)
• Sharon Morehouse, dangerous intersection on 8th Ave S and 265th Street
• Mike Johnson, Historical Site (Masonic Home)
• Michelle Raus, Crash Corner in Des Moines
• Courtnei Robbins and Tyler Biehle, Improvements needed to Crash Corner
• Anet Fox, Traffic Hazard at Marine View Drive So & Woodmont Ave Intersection
• Rebecca Stapleton, Illegal to conduct as well as attend racing
• Beth Grosskrueger, Water Main Replacement
• Toni Mills, Beta pilot program results and lack of transparency
• Lorie Lucky, Noise Issues Caused by Motor Vehicles

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC via Zoom 
• Lorie Lucky, Noise Issues Caused by Motor Vehicles

Consent Calendar Item #2
5

5



CITY MANAGER REPORT 
• City Manager Matthias and Chief Strategic Officer Susan Cezar recognized the 

retirements of Building Official Larry Pickard and Assistant Building Official Al 
Biancalana 

• Transportation & Engineering Services Manager Merges updated the Council on 
the Consent Calendar Item #3 

• Chief Thomas gave Council an update on the New Legislative Laws, Redondo, 
Body Camera, and WASPC Peer review for Behavioral Health Co-Responder 
Grant 

• Emergency Preparedness Manager Kirchberg updated the Council on the status 
of the city facilities reopening. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Item 1: APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS 
 Motion is to approve for payment vouchers and payroll transfers through June 11, 

2021 in the attached list and further described as follows: 
 Total A/P Checks/Vouchers #162584-162642 $   421,716.05 
 Electronic Wire Transfers  #        1719-1732 $   717,823.81 
 Payroll Checks   #    19408-19408  $          435.03 
 Payroll Direct Deposit  #220001-220152 $   380,621.78 
 
 Total Checks and Wires for A/P and Payroll:    $1,520,596.67 

 
Item 2:   LESBIAN, GAY, BISEXUAL, TRANSGENDER, QUESTIONING PRIDE MONTH  
  (LGTBQ) PROCLAMATION 
  Motion is to approve the Proclamation recognizing June as LGBTQ Pride Month. 
 
Item 3: NORTH MARINA PARKING LOT BULKHEAD AND RESTROOM REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT: PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD AND 
CONSULTANT CONTRACT SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT #5 

 Motion 1 is to direct administration to bring forward a budget amendment to the 
2021-2026 Capital Improvement Plan and the 2021 Capital Budget to include the 
amended North Marina Parking Lot Bulkhead and Restroom Replacement Project, 
and the associated project modifications to: Barnes Creek Trail, S. 200th St & S. 
199th St. Improvements (Segment 1), Beach Park Bulkhead, Promenade & Play 
Equipment/Water Feature, and the Arterial Traffic Calming as shown in (Attachment 
1) and as described herein, and include such amendment in the next available 
budget amendment ordinance. 

 
 Motion 2 is to approve the Public Works Contract with Bergerson Construction, Inc. 

(Contractor), for North Marina Parking Lot Bulkhead and Restroom Replacement 
Project Base Bid Proposal, in the amount of $9,493,859.71, not authorize award of 
Alternate A Bid Proposal, authorize a project construction contingency in the amount 
of $850,000.00, and further authorize the City Manager to sign said Contract 
substantially in the form as submitted. 

 
 Motion 3 is to approve Supplemental Agreement #5 with Exeltech Consulting for the 

North Marina Parking Lot Bulkhead and Restroom Replacement project in the 
amount of $965,437.05 for Construction Management and Inspection Services, and 
further authorize the City Manager to sign said Agreement substantially in the form 
as submitted. 

6

6



Item 4:  24TH AVENUE PIPELINE REPLACEMENT/UPGRADE PROJECT 
 Motion 1 is to approve the Task Order Assignment with Parametrix for engineering 

design services for South 224th Street Storm Sewer Replacement project in the 
amount of $46,222.54 plus a contingency in the amount of $3,777.00, and authorize 
the City Manager to sign said Task Order Assignment, substantially in the form as 
submitted. 

 
 Motion 2 is to direct Administration to submit a CIP budget amendment for the 24th 

Avenue South Improvements Project (Kent-Des Moines Rd. (SR 516) to S. 223rd St) 
to incorporate the surface water design on South 224th Street. 

 
Item 5: 2021 DES MOINES FARMERS MARKET AGREEMENT 
 Motion is to approve the Agreement with the Des Moines Farmers Market for the 

2021 Des Moines Waterfront Farmers Market to be held at the Des Moines Marina 
on Saturdays from June through October, and other market days throughout the year 
as may be approved by the City Manager, and authorize the City Manager to 
execute the Agreement substantially in the form as attached. 

 
 Direction/Action 
 Motion made by Councilmember Nutting to approve the Consent Calendar; 

seconded by Deputy Mayor Mahoney. 
 
 Councilmember Harris pulled Item #5 
 
 The remainder of the Consent Calendar passed 7-0. 
 
 Council discussed Item #5 
 
 Motion made by Councilmember Nutting to approve Consent Calendar Item #5 as 

presented; seconded by Councilmember Buxton. 
 Motion passed 7-0. 
 
  Mayor Pina read the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and Questioning Pride 

Month   (LGTBQ) Proclamation summary into the record. 
  
 At 6:05 p.m. Councilmember Bangs left the meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Item1:  WRIA 9 SALMON HABITAT PLAN 2021 UPDATE ADOPTION 
  Staff Presentation:  Surface Water & Environment Engineering Manager Loren 

Reinhold 
 
  WRIA 9 Salmon Recovery Manger Matt Goehing gave Council a PowerPoint 

Presentation on the WRIA 9 Salmon Habitat Plan 2021 Update. 
 
 Direction/Action 
 Motion made by Councilmember Nutting to adopt Draft Resolution No. 21-032 

ratifying the 2021 Update to the Water Resource Inventory Area (WRIA) 9 Salmon 
Habitat Plan, Making Our Watershed Fit for a King; seconded by Deputy Mayor 
Mahoney. 

 Motion passed 6-0. 

7

7



 
Item 2:  INTRODUCTION OF ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 
 10 Minutes 
 

Councilmember Harris asked that discussion on placing past and future recorded 
Committee meetings on the City’s website be placed on a future agenda in July for 
further discussion.  Support was given from Councilmember Martinelli and Deputy 
Mayor Mahoney. 
 

BOARD & COMMITTEE REPORTS/COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS – (4 minutes per 
Councilmember) - 30 minutes 

 Councilmember Harris 
• Redondo and Public Safety 

 
 Councilmember Buxton 

• Human Services Advisory Meeting 
• Organic Blend Ribbon Cutting 
• Running of the Flags 
• Park Run 
• Happy Birthday Des Moines 

 
 Councilmember Martinelli 

• Staff Reports 
• Flag at the Police Department 
• Des Moines Farmers Market 
• Committee Meeting Recordings 
• Ban of Facial Recognition Software 

 
 Councilmember Nutting 

• Des Moines Farmers Market 
• Des Moines Bulk Head 
• Happy 13th Birthday Lilah 
 

 Deputy Mayor Mahoney 
• Des Moines Farmers Market 
• Gateway Executive Meeting 
• South County Transportation Board - SCATBd Meeting 
• Meeting with Secretary of State Kim Wyman 
• Organic Blend Ribbon Cutting 
• Downtown Clean-Up 
• Woodmont Corner 

 
PRESIDING OFFICER’S REPORT 

• Des Moines Arts Commission Update 
• Letter Sent to Port of Seattle regarding Proposed Parking Lot in North SeaTac 

Park 
• Misleading Information on Social Media or Emails 

 
 
 

8

8



NEXT MEETING DATE 
 July 08, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Direction/Action  
Motion made by Councilmember Nutting to adjourn; seconded by Deputy Mayor 
Mahoney. 
The motion passed 6-0.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:02 p.m. 

 
 

 
  Minutes Approved at the _____________ Council Meeting. 

 

9

9



 
MINUTES 

 
DES MOINES CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers 

VIA ZOOM 
July 08, 2021 – 5:00 p.m. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 Mayor Pina called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 The flag salute was led by Councilmember Nutting. 

ROLL CALL 
Council present: Mayor Matt Pina 
 
   Deputy Mayor Matt Mahoney; Councilmembers Luisa Bangs, Traci Buxton, JC 

Harris, and Jeremy Nutting attended the meeting via Zoom. 
 
   Councilmember Anthony Martinelli was absent 
 
   Direction/Action 
   Motion made by Deputy Mayor Mahoney to excuse Councilmember Martinelli; 

seconded by Councilmember Buxton. 
   Motion passed 6-0. 
 
Staff present: Assistant Police Chief Mark Couey; and City Clerk/Communications Director Bonnie 

Wilkins 
 
   City Manager Michael Matthias; City Attorney Tim George; Assistant City Attorney 

Matt Hutchins; Chief Operations Officer Dan Brewer; Chief Strategic Officer Susan 
Cezar; Human Resource Director Adrienne Johnson-Newton; Finance Director Beth 
Anne Wroe, Deputy Finance Director Jeff Friend; Harbormaster Scott Wilkins; 
Assistant Harbormaster Katy Bevegni; Planning & Development Service Manager 
Denise Lathrop; Economic Relief & Resource Coordinator / Land Use Planner II  Eric 
Lane; Assistant Director of Parks, Recreation and Senior Services Nicole Nordholm; 
Associate Events and Facilities Manager Ashley Young; Emergency Preparedness 
Manager Shannon Kirchberg and Deputy City Clerk Taria Keane attended the 
meeting via Zoom.   

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

• There were no correspondence 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC via Written Comment 
• Bill and Annette Dwyer, Woodmont Driving Safety 
• Steven Plaza, Memorial Park 
• Betsy Sproger, Dead Man’s Curve 
• Rebecca Stapleton, Please make City Council meetings available anytime 

 
 
 

10

10



COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC via Zoom 
• Phyllis Crawford, Destruction of Personal Property 
• Dan Wahlstrom, Marine View Drive South and Woodmont Drive South 

 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 

• City Manager Matthias gave Council a brief update on the 4th of July 
 

• City Manager Matthias gave an update on the Cooling Centers 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Item 1: DES MOINES NORMANDY PARK INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR SENIOR 

SERVICES 2021-2022  
 Motion is to approve the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Normandy Park for the 

provision of Senior Services in fiscal years 2021 and 2022 whereby Normandy Park 
will pay an amount equal to Normandy Park’s pro-rata share of costs per year for 
services based on participation levels, and authorize the City Manager to sign the 
Agreement substantially in the form as submitted. 

 
 Direction/Action 
 Motion made by Councilmember Nutting to approve the Consent Calendar; 

seconded by Deputy Mayor Mahoney. 
 Motion passed 6-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Item1:  DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 21-024; PROHIBITING ATTENDANCE AT UNLAWFUL 

RACING EVENTS  
  Staff Presentation:  Assistant City Attorney Matthew Hutchins  
 
  Assistant City Attorney Hutchins gave Council a PowerPoint on Draft Ordinance 21-

024, Unlawful Race Attendance. 
 
  Direction/Action 
  Motion 1 made by Councilmember Nutting to suspend Rule 26(a) in order to enact 

Draft Ordinance No. 21-024 on first reading; seconded by Councilmember Buxton. 
  Motion passed 5-1. 
 
  For: Mayor Pina; Deputy Mayor Mahoney; Councilmembers Bangs, Buxton, and 

Nutting. 
 
  Against: Councilmember Harris 
 
  Motion 2 made by Councilmember Nutting to enact Draft Ordinance No. 21-024, 

adding a new chapter to Title 9 DMMC and creating a new offense, Unlawful Race 
Attendance; seconded by Councilmember Bangs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

11

11



  Amended Motion made by Mayor Pina to amend section 2 subsection section 3 of 
Draft Ordinance 21-024 to replace the words class 2 civil infraction at a $256 fine to 
class 1 civil infraction which increases the first time offense fine to $513; seconded 
by Councilmember Harris. 

  Motion passed 6-0. 
 
  Motion 2 passed as amended 6-0. 
 
Item 2:  INTRODUCTION OF ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 10 Minutes 

• There were no Items for Future Consideration 
 
BOARD & COMMITTEE REPORTS/COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS – (4 minutes per 
Councilmember) - 30 minutes 

 Councilmember Nutting 
• Economic Development Committee Meeting 
• Cooling Centers 

 
 Councilmember Harris 

• Rule 26(a) 
• House Bill 1220 Presentation 
• Burien Climate Action Plan 
• Spoke with Director of Health Point 
• 4th of July 

 
 Councilmember Buxton 

• Downtown Clean-Up 
• Des Moines Farmers Market 
 

 Councilmember Bangs 
• Senior Services Advisory Committee Meeting 
• Downtown Clean-Up 

 
 Deputy Mayor Mahoney 

• Downtown Clean–Up 
• Triangle Park 
• Sea Pup Patrol Event 
• Virtual Waterland Car Parade 

 
PRESIDING OFFICER’S REPORT 

• Gratitude towards the City and the Staff for working through the pandemic 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 

 July 22, 2021 City Council Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12

12



ADJOURNMENT 
Direction/Action  
Motion made by Councilmember Bangs to adjourn; seconded by Councilmember 
Nutting. 
The motion passed 6-0.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:23 p.m. 

 
 

 
  Minutes Approved at the _____________ Council Meeting. 

 

13

13



 
MINUTES 

 
DES MOINES CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
City Council Chambers 

VIA ZOOM 
July 22, 2021 – 5:00 p.m. 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 Mayor Pina called the meeting to order at 5:01 p.m. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 The flag salute was led by Councilmember Buxton. 

ROLL CALL 
Council present: Mayor Matt Pina 
 
   Deputy Mayor Matt Mahoney; Councilmembers Luisa Bangs, Traci Buxton, JC 

Harris, Anthony Martinelli and Jeremy Nutting attended the meeting via Zoom. 
 
Staff present: Police Chief Ken Thomas; and City Clerk/Communications Director Bonnie Wilkins 
 
   City Manager Michael Matthias; City Attorney Tim George; Chief Operations Officer 

Dan Brewer; Chief Strategic Officer Susan Cezar; Human Resource Director 
Adrienne Johnson-Newton; Assistant Police Chief Mark Couey; Finance Director 
Beth Anne Wroe, Harbormaster Scott Wilkins; Assistant Harbormaster Katy Bevegni; 
Public Works Director Brandon Carver; Transportation & Engineering Services 
Manager Andrew Merges; Economic Relief & Resource Coordinator / Land Use 
Planner II  Eric Lane; Assistant Director of Parks, Recreation and Senior Services 
Nicole Nordholm; Associate Events and Facilities Manager Ashley Young; 
Emergency Preparedness Manager Shannon Kirchberg and Deputy City Clerk Taria 
Keane attended the meeting via Zoom.   

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

• There were no correspondence 
 

COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC via Written Comment 
• Azeb Hagos, Kid and family programming needs 
• Maggie Burke, resuming duplicate bridge at the senior center 
• Liz Burn, Federal Stimulus Funds 
• Will Dimmitt, Recommendations for Federal Stimulus 
• Lora Heister, To participate in forums 
• Stephen Heller, Community Center 
• Carter Hoffmann, Duplicate Bridge Game at Des Moines Senior Center 
• Brandie Homes, Federal Stimulus – Practical Application 
• Yvonne Kirkland, Friday Bridge at Des Moines community center 
• Toni Ann Mills, We do not need more enforcement 
• Sally Odegaard, condo at Heritage Court 
• Brian Reagan, duplicate bridge games 
• Beverly Reich, Reopen of Senior Center 
• Lisa Shallit, Des Moines Duplicate Bridge Club 

14

14



• Betsy Sproger, Hiring more police officers 
• Franklin Tiangsing, Bridge game at the Senior Center 

 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC via Zoom 

• Del Rivero, State baseball tournament 
• Bill Willette, Redondo Parking Lot 
• Lora Heister, To participate in forums 

 
CITY MANAGER REPORT 

• City Manager Matthias commented on the Senior Center Bridge Club 
 

• Assistant Director of Parks, Recreation and Senior Services Nordholm gave 
Council an update on Recreation Programs 

 
• Chief Operations Officer Brewer gave Council an update on the Marina Dock 

Replacement – Consent Calendar Item #4 
 

• City Manager Matthias gave Council background information on Consent 
Calendar Item #2 

 
• City Manager Matthias gave Council a brief update on the Excessive Heat Wave 

and the City’s response. 
 

• City Manager Matthias gave Council a presentation on the ARPA Funds 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Item 1: POLICE BODY WORN CAMERA PROGRAM FUNDING 

Motion 1 is to approve an agreement with WatchGuard for the purchase of 
equipment and software necessary for the Police Body Worn Camera program, and 
authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement substantially in the form as 
attached. 

 
Motion 2 is to direct Administration to include sufficient funds for the purchase and 
maintenance of equipment and software for the Police Body Worn Camera program 
in the City budget for a period of 5 years. 
 

Item 2:  CONTRACT AMENDMENT AND EXTENSION WITH COACHING ACTION 
 Motion is to approve Amendment No. 2 with Coaching Action to continue to provide 

for leadership and communication for City staff through December of 2022, and 
authorize the City Manager to sign the amendment substantially in the form as 
attached.   

 
Item 3:  HUMAN SERVICES ADVISORY COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 Motion is to confirm the Mayoral appointment of Corrine Anderson-Ketchmark and 

Mary Guiberson to the City of Des Moines Human Services Advisory Committee 
effective immediately and expiring on December 31, 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 

15

15



ITEM 4: DES MOINES MARINA REPLACEMENT OF M AND N DOCKS – CONSULTANT 
CONTRACT  

 Motion is to approve the Consultant Contract with Moffett and Nichols for the 
replacement of M and N docks in the amount of $597,804, authorize a design 
contingency in the amount of $60,000 and further authorize the City Manager to sign 
said agreement in the form as submitted.   

 
ITEM 5: DRAFT RESOLUTION NO. 21-033 SETTING A DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARING FOR 

VACATION OF PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY FOR SOUTH 219TH STREET, SOUTH 
220TH STREET, SOUTH 221ST STREET, SOUTH 224TH STREET AND 30TH 
AVENUE SOUTH TO SOUND TRANSIT FOR THE FEDERAL WAY LINK 
EXTENSION 

 Motion is to adopt Draft Resolution No. 21-033 setting a public hearing on 
September 2, 2021 or soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, for street 
vacations of South 219th Street, South 220th Street, South 221st Street, South 224th 
Street, and 30th Avenue South within the City of Des Moines to Sound Transit for the 
Federal Way Link Extension. 

 
ITEM 6: APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS 
 Motion is to approve for payment vouchers and payroll transfers through July 2, 

2021 in the attached list and further described as follows: 
 Total A/P Checks/Vouchers #162643-162764 $   647,933.88 
 Electronic Wire Transfers #        1733-1745 $   623,124.95 

Payroll Checks  #    19409-19409 $          994.76 
 Payroll Direct Deposit  #240001-240147 $   383,020.78 

Payroll Checks  #    19410-19411 $       5,949.05 
Payroll Direct Deposit  #260001-260153 $   418,333.07 

 
 Total Checks and Wires for A/P and Payroll:   $2,079,356.49 

 
ITEM 7: ARTS COMMISSION APPOINTMENT 
 Motion is to confirm the Mayoral appointment of Meiling Sproger to a 3 year term on 

the City of Des Moines Arts Commission effective immediately and expiring on 
December 31, 2023.  

 
 Direction/Action 
 Motion made by Councilmember Nutting to approve the Consent Calendar; 

seconded by Councilmember Bangs 
 
 Councilmember Harris pulled Item #1. 
 
 The remainder of the Consent Calendar passed 7-0. 
 
 Council discussed Item #1. 
 
 Motion 1 made by Councilmember Nutting to approve Consent Calendar Item #1 

Motion 1 as presented; seconded by Councilmember Bangs. 
 Motion passed 6-1. 
 
 

16

16



 For:  Mayor Pina; Deputy Mayor Mahoney; Councilmembers Bangs, Buxton, 
Martinelli, and Nutting. 

 
 Against: Councilmember Harris. 
 
 Motion 2 made by Councilmember Nutting to approve Consent Calendar Item #1 

Motion 2 as presented; seconded by Councilmember Bangs. 
 Motion passed 6-1. 
 
 For:  Mayor Pina; Deputy Mayor Mahoney; Councilmembers Bangs, Buxton, 

Martinelli, and Nutting. 
 
 Against: Councilmember Harris. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM 1:  RECORDING OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 Staff Presentation:  City Manager Michael Matthias 
 

 City Manager Matthias informed Council that prior Committee Meetings that have 
been recorded will be put online. 

 
ITEM 2:  INTRODUCTION OF ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 

 10 Minutes 
 
  Deputy Mayor Mahoney made a motion to send a letter to State and Federal 

Legislators regarding loud mufflers; seconded by Mayor Pina and Councilmember 
Buxton. 

 
BOARD & COMMITTEE REPORTS/COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS – (4 minutes per 
Councilmember) - 30 minutes 
 Councilmember Buxton 

• Welcomed Volunteers 
• Des Moines Farmers Market 
• Building a Foundation for Racial Equity Meeting 
 

 Councilmember Martinelli 
• Commented on Consent Calendar Item #1 
• Stimulus Funding 
• Welcomed Volunteers 

 
 Councilmember Bangs 

• Police Department Advisory Committee Meeting 
 

 Councilmember Nutting 
• Welcomed Volunteers 
• National Night Out 
• Summer Concert in the Park 
• Movie in the Park 

 
 
 

17

17



 Councilmember Harris 
• Commented on Consent Calendar Item #1 
• Cooling Centers 
• Redondo Candidate Forum 
• Bridge Club at the Senior Center 
• Environment Committee Meeting  
• Transportation Committee Meeting 
 

 Deputy Mayor Mahoney 
• Little League Tournament at Steven J Underwood Park 
• SR3 - Sea Pup Patrol 
• SCATBd Meeting 
• Highline Forum 

 
PRESIDING OFFICER’S REPORT 

• SR3 - Sea Pup Patrol 
• Des Moines Farmers Market 
• Environment Committee Meeting 

 
NEXT MEETING DATE 

 August 05, 2021 City Council Study Session 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

Direction/Action  
Motion made by Councilmember Nutting to adjourn; seconded by Deputy Mayor 
Mahoney. 
The motion passed 7-0.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:03 p.m. 

 
 

 
  Minutes Approved at the _____________ Council Meeting. 

 

18

18



A G E N D A   I T E M 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, WA 

SUBJECT:  Confirmation of City Manager’s  
Re-appointment of Lisa Leone to the Municipal 
Court Judge Position 

ATTACHMENTS: none 

FOR AGENDA OF:   September 16, 2021 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN:   Legal 

DATE SUBMITTED: September 7, 2021 

CLEARANCES: 
    [   ]  Community Development  
    [   ]  Marina  
    [   ]  Parks, Recreation & Senior Services  
    [   ]  Public Works  

CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER:_________ 

[X] Legal
    [   ]  Finance  
    [   ]  Courts 
    [   ]  Police 

APPROVED BY CITY MANAGER 
FOR SUBMITTAL: _____________ 

Purpose and Recommendation 
The purpose of this agenda item is to seek City Council confirmation of the City Manager’s 
re-appointment of Lisa Leone to the Municipal Court Judge position. 

Suggested Motion 

Motion: “I move to confirm the City Manager’s re-appointment of Lisa Leone to the Municipal Court 
Judge position effective January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2025.” 

/s/ TG

Consent Calendar Item #3
19

19



2 

Background 
Judge Leone was appointed by the City Council to fill former Judge Alicea-Galvan’s unexpired term from 
May 11, 2015 through December 31, 2017. She was re-appointed in 2017 for another four year term 
through December 31, 2021.   
 
Discussion 
Judge Leone is capable and willing to accept the 4-year re-appointment, with an expiration date of 
December 31, 2025.  Judge Leone will continue to have all of the duties, responsibilities, and authorities 
of Municipal Court Judge.  The City is fortunate to have a municipal judge the caliber of Judge Leone.  
The Judge has instituted numerous programs to enhance community based justice; including DUI Court 
and brilliant adaptation to the challenges of COVID by literally creating a virtual court. 
 
Financial Impact 
None.  Funds are budgeted for this position. 
 
Recommendation 
The City manager recommends confirmation of this appointment. 

20

20



A G E N D A   I T E M 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City of Des Moines, WA 

SUBJECT:  Second Reading of Draft Ordinance 
No. 21-035 related to the Zoning Code and 
regulation of emergency housing, shelters, 
permanent supportive housing and transitional 
housing. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Ordinance No. 21-035

FOR AGENDA OF:   September 16, 2021 

DEPT. OF ORIGIN:   Community Development 

DATE SUBMITTED:  September 8, 2021 

CLEARANCES: 
[X] Community Development ____
[   ]  Marina ____
[   ]  Parks, Recreation & Senior Services   ____
[   ]  Public Works ____

CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER: ____________ 

    [X]  Legal ____  
    [   ]  Finance ____ 
    [   ]  Courts ____ 
    [   ]  Police ____ 

APPROVED BY CITY MANAGER 
FOR SUBMITTAL: ____________ 

Purpose and Recommendation 
The purpose of this agenda item is for City Council to consider adoption of Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
(Attachment 1) that would amend chapters 18.01, 18.52, and 18.210 and adding and codifying a new 
chapter entitled “Supportive Housing Standards” to the Des Moines Municipal Code (DMMC) to 
comply with the Washington State Legislature’s passage of Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill 
1220 (ESSHB 1220).  

Suggested Motion 

Motion 1:  “I move to adopt Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 amending chapters 18.01, 18.52, and 18.210 
DMMC and adding and codifying a new chapter entitled “Supportive Housing Standards” to the Des 
Moines Municipal Code” 

/s/ TG

Old  Business Item #1
21

21



2 

Background 
The passing of ESSHB 1220 resulted in a number of changes to how cities implement some of their 
local housing policies and development regulations. Starting July 25, 2021, “a city shall not prohibit 
transitional housing or permanent supportive housing in any zones in which residential dwelling units or 
hotels are allowed.”  

Additionally, by September 30, 2021 cities must allow indoor emergency shelters and indoor emergency 
housing in any zones in which hotels are allowed. An exception is provided for cities that have adopted 
an ordinance authorizing indoor emergency shelters and housing in most zones within one mile of 
transit. There is also language that allows reasonable occupancy, spacing, and intensity of use 
requirements for these uses. 

Local zoning authority is pre-empted by the state legislation, and all jurisdictions in the state are 
required to comply.  Many are also in the process of evaluating zoning regulations for compliance and 
adopting similar code amendments. These requirements are effective whether or not local code 
amendments are adopted and these amendments will provide for reasonable occupancy, spacing and 
intensity of use requirements specific to Des Moines as allowed under the legislation. 

The Revised Code of Washington (RCW) and Washington Administrative Code (WAC) provide 
definitions for the housing types as listed below: 

"Emergency housing" means temporary indoor accommodations for individuals or families who 
are homeless or at imminent risk of becoming homeless that is intended to address the basic 
health, food, clothing, and personal hygiene needs of individuals or families. Emergency housing 
may or may not require occupants to enter into a lease or an occupancy agreement. 

"Emergency shelter" means a facility that provides a temporary shelter for individuals or families 
who are currently homeless. Emergency shelter may not require occupants to enter into a lease or 
an occupancy agreement. Emergency shelter facilities may include day and warming centers that 
do not provide overnight accommodations. 

"Moderate-income household" means a single person, family, or unrelated persons living 
together whose adjusted income is at or below 120 percent of the median household income 
adjusted for household size, for the county where the household is located, as reported by the 
United States department of housing and urban development. 

“Permanent Supportive Housing” means subsidized, leased housing with no limit on length of 
stay that prioritizes people who need comprehensive support services to retain tenancy and 
utilizes admissions practices designed to use lower barriers to entry than would be typical for 
other subsidized or unsubsidized rental housing, especially related to rental history, criminal 
history, and personal behaviors. Permanent supportive housing is paired with on-site or off-site 
voluntary services designed to support a person living with a complex and disabling behavioral 
health or physical health condition who was experiencing homelessness or was at imminent risk 
of homelessness prior to moving into housing to retain their housing and be a successful tenant 
in a housing arrangement, improve the resident's health status, and connect the resident of the 
housing with community-based health care, treatment, or employment services. Permanent 
supportive housing is subject to all of the rights and responsibilities defined in chapter 59.18 
RCW. 

22

22



3 

“Transitional Housing” means a facility that provides housing and supportive services to 
homeless individuals or families for up to two years and whose primary purpose is to enable 
homeless individuals or families to move into independent living and permanent housing. 

Discussion 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 (Attachment 1) would amend chapters 18.01, 18.52, and 18.210 and add 
and codify a new chapter entitled “Supportive Housing Standards” to the Des Moines Municipal Code 
(DMMC) to comply with the Washington State Legislature passage of engrossed second substitute 
House Bill 1220 (ESSHB 1220).  City Council may adopt the ordinance on second reading on 
September 16, 2021, or soon thereafter, but prior to September 30, 2021 when the new law becomes 
fully effective.  Failure to adopt these code changes will limit the City’s ability to control the location, 
design and siting standards related to these housing types. 

Section 1 adds definitions in chapter 18.01 Definitions related to emergency housing, emergency 
shelter, permanent supportive housing and transitional housing. 

Sections 2 and 3 amend DMMC 18.52.010A Residential Use Chart and DMMC 18.52.010B 
Commercial Use Chart to add supportive housing as Conditional Uses subject to approval by the 
Hearing Examiner.  Section 2 also removes hotels as a permitted use in the RM 900 Zone.  

Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8 are new sections that address Supportive Housing Standards. The 
purpose of these sections is to establish standards for the operation of supportive housing 
facilities within the City.  

Section 9 amends chapter 18.210 Loading Areas and Off-street Parking code to add parking 
requirements related to emergency housing, emergency shelters, permanent supportive housing, 
and transitional housing. 

Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 reflects input from the Council Economic Development Committee who 
discussed the matter at their July 8th and July 29th meetings.  A notice of intent to adopt and a request for 
expedited review was sent to the Washington State Department of Commerce (Commerce) on August 
13, 2021 and expedited review was granted.  Therefore the Department of Commerce review is 
complete. A State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Determination of Nonsignificance and public 
hearing notice was issued on August 13, 2021 and the 15-day public comment and appeal periods have 
lapsed. 

The City Council held a first reading and concluded the public hearing on September 2, 2021.  No 
testimony was received.  

Alternatives 
City Council may: 

Adopt Draft Ordinance No. 21-035. 

Decline to adopted Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 or pass the ordinance to a third reading (not 
recommended).  These options would allow the state law to become fully effective without appropriate 
standards in place.  

23

23



4 

Financial Impact 
The City will charge a fee to cover the cost for processing permit applications received; however, other 
costs are unknown at this time.    

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 on September, 16, 2021.   

24

24



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 1 of 14 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 

CITY COUNCIL DRAFT - SECOND READING 9/2/2021 

DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 21-035 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DES MOINES, WASHINGTON relating 
to zoning and the regulation of emergency housing, emergency 
shelter and permanent supportive housing, amending chapters 18.01, 
18.52 and 18.210 and adding and codifying a new chapter entitled 
“Supportive Housing Standards” to the Des Moines Municipal Code.  

WHEREAS, in 2021, the Washington State Legislature passed 
Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill 1220 (ESSHB 1220), as 
codified in chapters 35.21, 35A.21 and 36.70A RCW, which requires 
cities like Des Moines to allow development of permanent supportive 
housing and transitional housing in all land use districts where 
residential dwellings and/or hotels are allowed, and 

WHEREAS, ESSHB 1220 also requires cities to allow 
emergency housing and emergency shelter in all zoning districts 
where hotels are allowed, and 

WHEREAS, ESSHB 1220 became effective on July 25, 2021 and 
requires cities to regulate permanent supportive housing and 
transitional housing consistent with ESSHB 1220 on that date, 
and 

WHEREAS, cities are required to regulate emergency 
housing and emergency shelter consistent with ESSHB 1220 by 
September 30, 2021, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Des Moines Zoning Code currently 
does not define or regulate permanent supportive housing, 
transitional housing, emergency housing or emergency shelter as 
distinct land uses, and 

WHEREAS, Comprehensive Plan Policy HOU 1.1 and 1.2 
directs the City to provide, through land use regulation, an 

Attachment #1

25

25



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 2 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

appropriate mix of housing types to accommodate Des Moines’ 
projected share of population growth, and 
 
 WHEREAS, Comprehensive Plan Policy HOU 1.2 directs the 
City to assist regional and multi-jurisdictional efforts to 
address the region’s need for low and moderate income housing, 
and special-needs housing, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan Housing Element states 
that 15.2 percent of Des Moines’ population lives at or below 
the poverty level (very-low income), and 
 
 WHEREAS, Comprehensive Plan Implementation Strategies HOU 
1.2.1-1.2.3 direct the City to work cooperatively with other 
King County cities/agencies to address regional housing issues 
and encourage affordable housing in all neighborhoods throughout 
the city, particularly in proximity to transit, employment 
and/or educational opportunities, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council Economic Development Committee 
directed City staff to prepare an ordinance addressing ESSHB 1220 
for City Council consideration, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the changes proposed by this ordinance have been 
processed in accordance with the requirements of the State 
Environmental Policy Act (SEPA), a final determination of non-
significance was issued by the responsible official, and the 
appropriate comment and appeal periods have expired, and  
  
 WHEREAS, the textual code amendments proposed in this Draft 
Ordinance were provided to the Department of Commerce as required 
by RCW 36.70A.106, and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was provided on August 
13, 2021 in accordance with the DMMC, and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 2, 2021 
where all persons wishing to be heard were heard, and 
 

26

26



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 3 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the Title 18 DMMC 
amendments contained in this Ordinance comply with the 
requirements of chapter 36.70A RCW and are appropriate and 
necessary; now therefore,  
 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DES MOINES ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Sec. 1. DMMC 18.01.050, Definitions, and section 5 of 
Ordinance No. 1591, as amended by section 1 of Ordinance No. 1628, 
as amended by section 1 of Ordinance No. 1655, as amended by 
section 3 of Ordinance No. 1661, as amended by section 3 of 
Ordinance No. 1669, as amended by section 15 of Ordinance No. 1671, 
as amended by section 1 of Ordinance No. 1697, as amended by 
section 3 of Ordinance 1714, as amended by section 2 of Ordinance 
1719 shall be amended to add the following definitions: 
 

"Emergency housing" means temporary indoor 
accommodations for individuals or families who are 
homeless or at imminent risk of becoming homeless 
that is intended to address the basic health, food, 
clothing, and personal hygiene needs of individuals 
or families. Emergency housing may or may not require 
occupants to enter into a lease or an occupancy 
agreement. 
  
"Emergency shelter" means a facility that provides 
a temporary shelter for individuals or families who 
are currently homeless. Emergency shelter may not 
require occupants to enter into a lease or an 
occupancy agreement. Emergency shelter facilities 
may include day and warming centers that do not 
provide overnight accommodations. 
 
"Moderate-income household" means a single person, 
family, or unrelated persons living together whose 
adjusted income is at or below 120 percent of the 
median household income adjusted for household size, 
for the county where the household is located, as 

27

27



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 4 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

reported by the United States department of housing 
and urban development. 
 
“Permanent Supportive Housing” means subsidized, 
leased housing with no limit on length of stay that 
prioritizes people who need comprehensive support 
services to retain tenancy and utilizes admissions 
practices designed to use lower barriers to entry 
than would be typical for other subsidized or 
unsubsidized rental housing, especially related to 
rental history, criminal history, and personal 
behaviors. Permanent supportive housing is paired 
with on-site or off-site voluntary services designed 
to support a person living with a complex and 
disabling behavioral health or physical health 
condition who was experiencing homelessness or was 
at imminent risk of homelessness prior to moving into 
housing to retain their housing and be a successful 
tenant in a housing arrangement, improve the 
resident's health status, and connect the resident 
of the housing with community-based health care, 
treatment, or employment services. Permanent 
supportive housing is subject to all of the rights 
and responsibilities defined in chapter 59.18 RCW. 
 
“Transitional Housing” means a facility that 
provides housing and supportive services to homeless 
individuals or families for up to two years and whose 
primary purpose is to enable homeless individuals or 
families to move into independent living and 
permanent housing. 
 

 
 Sec. 2. DMMC 18.52.010A, and those parts of the 
Residential Use Chart and Limitations 19 and 51, and section 132 
of Ordinance No. 1591 as amended by section 7 of Ordinance No. 
1655 as amended by section 2 of Ordinance No.1697 as amended 
section 8 of Ordinance No. 1737, shall be amended to read as 
follows: 
 

28

28



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 5 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

Use is: 
P: 
Permitted 
 
P/L: 
Permitted 
but with 
special 
limitation
s 
 
CUP: 
Conditiona
l use 
review 
required 
 
UUP: 
Unclassifi
ed use 
review 
required 

SFR RA- 
3600 

RM- 
2400 

RM- 
180
0 

RM- 
900 

RM- 
900A  

RM- 
900B 

R-SE R-
SR> 
3500
0 

R-
SR< 
3500
0 

PR-R 

 
Permanent 
Supportive 
Housing / 
Transition
al Housing 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

CUP/L 
[51] 

 

Hotels     
P/L 
[19] 

      

 
 
 
19. Hotels. This regulation applies to all parts of Table 
18.52.010A that have a [19]. 
 
Hotels shall be permitted; provided: 
 
(a) Restaurants, cocktail lounges, and specialty shops are 
permitted accessory uses; provided, the floor area devoted to such 
uses shall not exceed 20 percent of the total floor area and entry 
to such uses shall be from within the main building; 
 

29

29



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 6 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

(b) All buildings and structures shall maintain a distance of not 
less than 20 feet from any lot in a Residential Zone; and 
 
(c) A solid wall or view-obscuring fence or hedge not less than 
five feet nor more than six feet in height shall be erected and 
maintained on any exterior boundary line which is a common property 
line with residential property when such residential property is 
used only for residential purposes, except that on any portion of 
such common property line constituting the depth of the required 
front yard on the residential property such fence, wall, or hedge 
shall not be less than 36 inches nor more than 42 inches in height. 
 
51. Supportive Housing. This regulation applies to all parts of 
Table 18.52.010A that have a [51]. Permanent supportive housing 
and transitional housing may locate in the City subject to the 
requirements of chapter 18.140, section 8 of this Ordinance and 
other related provisions of this Title. 
 
 Sec. 3. DMMC 18.52.010B, and those parts of the 
Commercial Use Chart and Limitations 91 and 92, and section 133 of 
Ordinance No. 1591 as amended by section 12 of Ordinance No. 1601 
as amended by section 8 of Ordinance 1618-A as amended by section 
2 of Ordinance No. 1644 as amended by section 1 of Ordinance No. 
1645 as amended by section 8 of Ordinance 1655 as amended by 
section 4 of Ordinance No 1656 as amended by section 2 of Ordinance 
No. 1661 as amended by section 2 of Ordinance 1669 as amended by 
section 1 of Ordinance No. 1672 as amended by section 3 of 
Ordinance No. 1697 as amended by section 1 of Ord. 1701 as amended 
by section 2 of Ordinance 1714 as amended by section 1 of Ordinance 
1719 as amended by section 9 of Ordinance 1737 shall be amended to 
read as follows: 
 
Use is: 
P: 
Permitted 
 
P/L: 
Permitted 
but with 
special 

N-C  I-C B-P C-C D-C H-C PR-C T-C W-C N-C  I-C 

30

30



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 7 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

limitatio
ns 
 
CUP: 
Condition
al use 
review 
required 
 
UUP: 
Unclassif
ied use 
review 
required 
Emergency 
Housing / 
Emergency 
Shelter 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

 CUP/
L 
[91] 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

CUP/L 
[91] 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

CUP/
L 
[91] 

Permanent 
Supportive 
Housing / 
Transition
al Housing 

CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

 CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

CUP/L 
[92] 

 
  

91.  Emergency Housing and Emergency Shelter.  This 
regulation applies to all parts of Table 18.52.010B that 
have a [91].   

Emergency Housing and Emergency Shelter shall subject to 
the requirements of chapter 18.140, section 8 of this 
Ordinance and other related provisions of this Title. 

92. Permanent Supportive Housing. This regulation applies 
to all parts of Table 18.52.010B that have a [92]. 

Permanent supportive housing shall be subject to the 
requirements of chapter 18.140, section 8 of this Ordinance 
and other related provisions of this Title. 

(a) The Hearing Examiner may approve equal square 
footage of common recreation space in lieu of private 
recreation space requirements. 

31

31



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 8 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

 
 NEW SECTION Sec. 4. Title 18.  A new chapter shall be 
created in Title 18 entitled “Supportive Housing Standards.” The 
new chapter will consist of Sections 5-8 of this Ordinance.  
 

NEW SECTION Sec. 5. Application.  

This chapter shall apply to all emergency housing, 
emergency shelters, permanent supportive housing, and 
transitional housing in buildings or other permanent structures.  

NEW SECTION Sec. 6. Purpose.  

The purpose of this section is to establish standards for 
the operation of supportive housing facilities within the City.  
For the purpose of this section, “supportive housing facilities” 
includes only emergency housing, emergency shelters, permanent 
supportive housing, and transitional housing in buildings or 
other permanent structures. These regulations are intended to 
protect public health and safety by requiring safe operations of 
supportive housing facilities for both the residents of such 
facilities and the broader community. This section does not 
include regulations for homeless encampments regulated by DMMC 
18.170.080 and essential public facilities regulated by chapter 
18.255 DMMC.  

NEW SECTION Sec. 7. Authority. This chapter is 
established to regulate the siting of emergency housing, emergency 
shelters, permanent supportive housing, and transitional housing. 

NEW SECTION Sec. 8.   Performance Standards. 
 

  (a)General Requirements for all Supportive Housing 
Facilities.  
 

32

32



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 9 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

   (i) When a site includes more than one 
supportive housing facility, the more restrictive requirements of 
this section shall apply.  
 
   (ii) Specific needs of each facility shall be 
reviewed pursuant to the conditional use permit process in chapter 
18.140 DMMC.  
 
   (iii) All supportive housing facilities shall 
comply with the Des Moines Municipal Code, including but not 
limited to Title 14 Buildings and Construction and Title 18 Zoning. 
 
   (iv) Facilities shall meet the following 
locational criteria:  
 
    (A) Facilities shall be located within 
one quarter mile from a transit stop.  

 
    (B) Facilities shall be located at least 
one-half mile from another supportive housing facility.  
 
    (C) Facilities shall be located at least 
1,000 feet from an elementary, middle or high school, unless 
permitted as a family or youth shelter. For the purposes of this 
subsection, distance shall be measured in a straight line between 
the closest property line of the existing facility or school and 
the closest property line of the proposed facility.  
 
   (v) Facilities shall match the bulk and scale 
of residential uses allowed in the zone where the facility is 
located. The design, construction, appearance, physical integrity, 
and maintenance of the facility shall provide an environment that 
is attractive, sustainable, functional, appropriate for the 
surrounding community, and conducive to tenants’ stability.  
 
   (vi) Project design shall enhance personal 
safety and security through implementation of CPTED (Crime 
Prevention through Environmental Design) Principals.  
 

33

33



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 10 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

   (vii) The sponsor and/or managing agency shall 
ensure compliance with Washington State laws and regulations, the 
DMMC, and King County health department regulations. The sponsor 
and/or managing agency shall permit inspections by local agencies 
and/or departments to ensure such compliance and shall implement 
all directives resulting therefrom within the specified time 
period.  
 
   (viii) The required number of off-street 
parking spaces for each facility shall meet the requirements of 
chapter 18.210 DMMC.  
 
   (ix) An operations plan must be provided at the 
time of application by the sponsor and/or managing agency that 
addresses the following elements to the satisfaction of the City:  

 
    (A) Name and contact information for key 
staff;  
     
    (B) Roles and responsibilities of key 
staff;  
 
    (C) Site/facility management, including 
a security and emergency plan;  
 
    (D) Site/facility maintenance; 
 
    (E)Occupancy policies, including 
resident responsibilities and a code of conduct that address, at 
a minimum, the prohibition on the use or sale of alcohol and 
illegal drugs, threatening or unsafe behavior, and weapon 
possession.  
 
    (F) Provision of human and social 
services, including staffing plan and outcome measures;  
 
    (G) Outreach plan with surrounding 
property owners and residents and ongoing good neighbor policy; 
and  
 

34

34



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 11 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

    (H) Procedures for maintaining accurate 
and complete records.  
  
    (I) A description of provisions for 
transit, pedestrian, and bicycle access from the subject site to 
services shall be provided at time of application by the sponsor 
and/or managing agency.  
 
  (b) Specific requirements for Emergency Housing and 
Emergency Shelters, in addition to the requirements of subsection 
(a) of this section.  
 
   (i) Facilities shall meet the following 
capacity and density requirements:  
 
    (A) Emergency Housing shall be limited to 
no more than 20 units, or 20 residents in a facility without 
separate units, in the D-C, C-C, H-C and I-C Zones. Facilities 
within the PR-R, PR-C, T-C and W-C Zones shall be permitted at the 
zoned density.  
 
    (B) Emergency Shelters shall limit 
capacity to no more than one adult bed per 40 square feet of floor 
area per facility with up to 20 residents permitted in the D-C, C-
C, H-C and I-C Zones and up to 80 residents in the PR-R, PR-C, T-
C and W-C Zones.  
 
   (ii) Residents shall have access to the 
following services on-site; if not provided on-site, 
transportation shall be provided: 
 
    (A) For all facilities, medical services, 
including mental and behavioral health counseling.  
 
    (B) For emergency housing facilities, 
access to resources on obtaining permanent housing and access to 
employment and education assistance.  
 
    (C) For emergency shelter facilities, 
substance abuse assistance.  

35

35



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 12 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

 
  (c)  Specific requirements for Permanent Supportive 
Housing and Transitional Housing in addition to the requirements 
of subsection (a) of this section.  
  
   (i) Facilities shall meet the following 
capacity and density requirements:   
 
    (A) A maximum of 8 residents shall be 
permitted the Single Family Zones (RS-15,000, RS-9,600, RS-8,400, 
RS-7,200, and RS-4,000) and R-SE Zone, and facilities are subject 
to the development standards of the zone that the facility is 
located.   
 
    (B) A maximum of 40 units shall be 
permitted in the Multifamily Residential Zones (RA-3,600, RM-
2,400, RM-1,800, RM-900, RM-900A and RM-900B) and in the C-C, D-
C, H-C, I-C, and N-C Zones.  
 
    (C) Facilities located in the PR-R, PR-
C, T-C and W-C Zones shall comply with the density requirements of 
the underlying zone.  
 
   (ii) Facilities shall be required to meet the 
design requirements of chapter 18.235 DMMC.  
 
    (a) On-site recreation area shall be 
provided as specified in chapter 18.155 DMMC. The Hearing Examiner 
may approve equal square footage of common recreation space in 
lieu of private recreation space requirements.  
 
   (iii) All residents shall have access to 
appropriate cooking and hygiene facilities. 
   (iv) Facilities serving more than five dwelling 
units shall have dedicated spaces for residents to meet with 
service providers.  
 
   (v) Residents shall have access to the 
following services on-site; if not provided on-site, 
transportation shall be provided:  

36

36



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 13 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

 
    (A) Medical services, including mental 
and behavioral health counseling.  
 
    (B) Employment and education assistance.  
 
 Sec. 9. DMMC 18.210.090(15) and section 513 of Ordinance 
No. 1591, as amended by Section 16 of Ordinance No 1601, as amended 
by section 12 of Ordinance No 1618-A, as amended by section 19 of 
Ordinance No 1655 as amended by section 5 of Ordinance No. 1656 
shall be amended to add the following: 
 
  (15) 
… 
 
   (i) Emergency Housing and Emergency Shelter. 
_One parking space for each two employees plus one space for each 
four beds.  
   
    (j) Permanent Supportive Housing and Temporary 
Housing.  _One parking space for each two employees plus one 
parking space for each dwelling unit in all residential zones, and 
one-half parking space for each dwelling unit in the in the C-C, 
D-C, H-C, I-C, N-C, PR-C, PR-R, T-C and W-C Zones.  
 
 NEW SECTION. Sec. 10. Codification. Sections 4 
through 8 of this ordinance shall be codified as a new chapter in 
Title 18 DMMC.  
 
 Sec. 11. Severability - Construction.    
 
 (1) If a section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, 
clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is declared unconstitutional 
or invalid for any reason by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance.   
 
 (2) If the provisions of this Ordinance are found to be 
inconsistent with other provisions of the Des Moines Municipal 
Code, this Ordinance is deemed to control. 

37

37



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 14 of 14 
 
 

08/13/2021 
Draft Ordinance No. 21-035 
 

 
 Sec. 12. Effective date. This Ordinance shall take 
effect and be in full force five (5) days after its final approval 
by the Des Moines City Council in accordance with law. 
 
 PASSED BY the City Council of the City of Des Moines this 
____ day of __________ and signed in authentication thereof this 
____ day of ________, 2021. 
 
 
           
          M A Y O R 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
     
City Attorney 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
City Clerk 
 
Published:     

38

38



 

September 16, 2021 

City Council Meeting 

 

American Rescue Plan 

Act (ARPA) Discussion 

39

39



40

40



IN
TR

O
D

U
C

TIO
N

INTRODUCTION

41

41



42

42



43

43



A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

ATIO
N

ADMINISTRATION

44

44



45

45



46

46



47

47



C
O

U
N

C
IL

COUNCIL

48

48



 

49

49



50

50



51

51



52

52



53

53



54

54



55

55



56

56



57

57



58

58



59

59



60

60



61

61



62

62



63

63



64

64



65

65



C
O

M
M

U
N

ITY

COMMUNITY

66

66



67

67



68

68



69

69



70

70



71

71



72

72



73

73



74

74



75

75



76

76



77

77



78

78



79

79



80

80



81

81



82

82



83

83



C
O

M
M

E
N

TS

COMMENTS

84

84



85

85



86

86



87

87



88

88



89

89



90

90



91

91



92

92



93

93



94

94



95

95



96

96



97

97



98

98



99

99



100

100



101

101


	APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS
	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	CONFIRMATION OF CITY MANAGER’S RE-APPOINTMENT OF LISA LEONE TO THE MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE POSITION
	SECOND READING OF DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 21-035 RELATED TO THE ZONING CODE AND REGULATION OF EMERGENCY HOUSING, SHELTERS, PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING AND TRANSITIONAL HOUSING



